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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of,
DEE FABRICOM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DEE FABRICOM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), Statement of changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for
the year then ended, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Ind AS and accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and loss, total comprehensive income, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report
including Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under scction 133 of the




Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for explaining our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

1. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.




2. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

3. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the ‘Order’) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure B, a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure B, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014.

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as on
31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date and our report as per Annexure A expressed an unmodified opinion;

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. there were no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025;

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign

entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest



Vi.

in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as

disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries and

(©) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared and paid any dividend during the year in contravention of
the provisions of Section 123 of the Companies Act 2013.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has not
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, the audit trail feature is not enabled for certain changes made using privileged/
administrative access rights and for direct changes to data when using certain access
rights. Additionally, the preservation of audit trail log could not be ascertained for the
accounting software, consequently we are unable to comment on preservation of audit
trail log.

h) The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite

approva

For Sanmarks & Associates

Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration |

Santosh @‘Agra a )

(Partner) NIED ACCOS

Membership No. 091127

Place: Faridabad
Date: : 22/05/2025

UDIN: 25091127BMIN

Is mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 15(f) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of DEE
FABRICOM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED , on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

i

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of M/s DEE
FABRICOM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

)

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness

of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

A
5y 1

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both
issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

0.

A Company’s Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company’s Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.



Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based
on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL.

For Sanmarks & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration NufbefkA003343N)

Santosn’dar;gra Va

(Partner) NE
Membership No. 091127

Place: Faridabad
Date: : 22/05/2025
UDIN: 25091127BMINRT5181



Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 14 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of DEE
FABRICOM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED , on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b)  The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed assets are
verified every year. In accordance with this program, the fixed assets were verified during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the tile deeds of immovable properties, as
disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the company.

(d)  The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of use assets) during
the year, Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the valuation
by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of
the net carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment does not arise.

(¢) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45
of 1988) and Rules made there under, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company
has appropriately disclosed the details in its financial statements does not arise.

(ii) ~ (a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management
during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by Management is
appropriate. There was no inventory lying with third parties as at year end. The discrepancies noticed on
physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each
class of inventory.

(b) During the year, the Company was not sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crore, in
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets and therefore the question of our
commenting on whether the Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are
in agreement with the unaudited books of account does not arise.

(iii) The Company has not made investments in any company during the year. The Company has not granted
secured / unsecured loans/advances in nature of loans, stood guarantor, or provided security to any parties.
Therefore, the reporting under clauses (iii)(a), (iii)(b), (iii)(c), (iii) (d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(f) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

(iv)  The Company has not granted any loans, or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under
Section 185 of the Act. Further, in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not made any investments during the year and thus, question of complying with the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the investments made by it does not arise

and the Company has not provided any loans, guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 186
of the Act.

(v)  The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts, which are deemed deposits within the meaning of
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

(vi)  In our opinion, the company is not required to maintain the cost records u/s 148(1) of the Companies Act as it
has not crossed the threshold limit for same.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by
us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including goods and
services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, duty of customs and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.
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(viii

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the

year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of
account.

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to

us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest to
any lender during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we

report that the Company has not been declared Willful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(¢) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans taken
during the year have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. In respect of the term loans
which were taken in the previous year, those were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on
an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e)  The company has no subsidiaries, therefore reporting under clauses (ix)e and (ix)f are not applicable to
it.

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partially

or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on

the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the
Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central
Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(¢) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not received any whistle- blower complaints during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under this clause is not required for the company.

(xii) As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting
under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) ~ The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required under applicable accounting standard.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not

require to have an internal audit system. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)(a) and 3(xiv)(b) of the order are not
applicable on the company.



(xv)

(xvi)

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the Act under clause
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Group does

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the
information provided by the management is accurate and complete. Accordingly, the reporting under clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the reporting under
clause (xviii) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (Also
refer Note 31 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of CSR are not applicable to the company as it has not crossed the threshold limits defined
for same under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and
3(xx)(b) are not applicable to the company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone Financial
Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For Sanmarks & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration-

Santosh Kumar
(Partner) S
Membership No. 0911
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Place: Faridabad
Date: 22/05/2025
UDIN: 25091127BMINRT5181



DEE FABRICOM INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U28990HR2018PTC076325
Regd. Address: 1255 Sector-14_ Faridabad . FARIDABAD . Haryana, India, 121007
Phone No: 01275 248 200

(Ameunt in INR Lacs)
Statement of audited Standalone financial results for the quarter and year ended 31 March, 2025 i
$.No. Particulars : Quarter ended Year ended
31-03-2025 31-12-2024 31-03-2024 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Audited Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
1 Revenue from operations 1.035.44 1,191.03 1,749 44 5,064.05 3,726.34
1 Other mcome 54.99 4095 28.67 179.26 142,35
i1 Total income ( 1+1II) 1,090.43 1,231.98 1,778.11 5,243.31 | 3,868.69
v Expenses
a) Cost of material consumed - - - . <
b) Purchases of stock in trade o - - -
¢) Changes in inventories of finsshed goods, work in progress and - - 20707 - -
stock m trade
d) Employee benefit expenses 109.10 115.65 10291 422.73 364.32
) Finance cost 48.38 54.49 68.34 210.21 29372
©) Depreciation and amoriisation expense 116.33 11543 11158 463.34 451 49
g) Other expenses 686.23 920.06 508 30 341634 2,107.49
Total expenses (a to g) 960.04 1,205.63 1,298.20 4,512.62 3217.02
v Profit before tax 130.39 26.35 47991 730.69 651.67
a) Current tax - - - - -
b) Deferred tax 4895 -11.79 181.13 181.22 157.02
V1 Total tax expense 48.95 (11.79) 18113 181.22 157.02
v Profit for the year (V-VI) 81.44 38.14 298.78 549.47 494.65
VI Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
a) Remieasurement of the net defined benefit fiabiliy/asset, net -1.48 0.49 035 (0.02) 1.55
b) Income Tax effect 0.37 (0.12) 009 0.01 (0.40)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax -1.10 0.37 026 (0.02) 1.15
X Total comprehensive income for the year (VII- VI 80.34 38.51 299.04 549.45 495.80
X Paid up share capital (par value Rs, 10/- each, fully paid) 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00 900.00
X1 Other equity
XI Earuings per equity share (par value Rs. 10/~ each)**
a) Basic 090 0.42 332 6.11 5.50
b) Diluted 0.90 042 332 6.11 5.50
*Not Anmalised except for the year end
Notes

1. The above financial results of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Iod AS" prescribed under Section 133 of the Compamnies
Act 2013, read with Companses (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended ffom time to time and other accountmg principles generally accepted i India and are m
compliance with Regulation 33 and 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Req ts) Reg 2015, as amended (the “Listmg Regulations”) to the extent
applicable. There are no changes i the accounting policies during the current reported period as compare to the correspondmg perods / years.

2. The Company has one business segment, which is "Fabrication”

3. The figures for three months ended 31 March, 2025 are the balancmg figure between figures in respect of the year ended and published year to date figures up to the twelve
months of the Previous fmancial year.

4. The above results have been reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 22th May, 2025,

For and on belalf of the Board of Drrectors of
DEE Fabricom India Private Limited

et ot

N R e e T
K.L. Bansal Ashima Bansal
Place - Faridabad Director Director
Date ; 22-05-25 DIN - 01125121 DIN : 01928449
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DEE Fabricom India Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025
(CIN: U28990HR2018PTC076325)

(Amt in INK Lacs )
Particulars N As at Asat
i 31-03-2025 31032024
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 218379 2,544 84
(b) iIntangible assers i) 0.26 1.22
(¢) Rught of use assets 32 167.77 186.37
(d) Fmancial assets
Others 4(D) 86.51 67.84
(e) Deferred tax assets (ner) 13 - 162.31
Total non-current assets 2,438.33 2.962.58
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventones 6 612.62 680.48
(b) Fuancial assets
(1) Trade recevables 4(A) 631.84 507.88
(1) Cash and cash equivalents 4B) 1.43 208.32
(ii1) Bank balances other than (i1) above 4Oy 8758 78.04
(rv) Others 4D) 0.78 0.96
(c) Other current assets 5 114.68 199.04
Total current assets 1,448.93 1.674.72
Tatal Assets 3,887.26 4,637.30
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital ne 900.00 900.00
(b} Other equaty § 128.18 (421.26)
Total equity 1,028.18 473.74
LIABILITIES
(1) Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowngs 9(A) 985.56 1,853.51
(i) Lease Liabilities 10A 151.88 163.15
(b) Deferred tax habities (net) 13 1891 -
(c) Provisions 11 21.47 11.50
Total non-current liabilities 1,177.82 2,028.16
{2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 9(B) 481.24 1.151.77
(1) Lease Liabiiitses 10A 43.84 45.15
(im) Trade pavables 14 857.64 182.67
(iv) Other financial liabilitics 10 97.70 123.37
(b) Provisions 11 0.72 7.65
() Other current liabilities 12 200.12 19.79
Total current liabilites 1,681.26 2,130.40
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,887.26 4,637.30
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date
For SANMARKS & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants —— DEE Fabricom India Private Limited

ICAT Fim Rez. No - 0003343815

e ﬂi»uw S W-asf_/g

N ——
Santosh Kumar Agrawal, ¢ K.L. Bansal Afhimn Bansal
Partner NN Director Director
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Date :22-05-2025



DEE Fabricom India Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2025
(CIN: U28990HR2018PTC076325)

(Amt in INR Lacs)

Particulars Hotes For the Year ended  For the Year ended
31-03-2025 31-03-2024
I Revenue from operation 15 5,064.05 3,726 .34
I Other income 16 179.26 142.35
I  Total Income (I+II) 5,243.31 3,868.69
IV Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 17 422.73 364.32
Finance costs 20 21021 293.72
Depreciation and amortization expense 18 463 34 451 .49
Other expenses 19 3.416.34 2,107 .49
Total expenses (IV) 4,512.62 3,217.02
V' Profit before tax (III-IV) 730.69 651.67

VI Tax expense:
(1) Curent tax -
(2) Adjustment of tax related to earlier years

(2) Deferred tax (credit) 181.22 157.02
Total tax expenses(VI) 181.22 157.02
VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 549.47 494.65
VIII Other comprehensive income (0.02) 1.15
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Re-measurement gam on define benefit plans 0.02) 155
Income tax effect 0.01 (0.40)
IX Total comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (VII+VIID 549 .45 495.80
Earnings per equity share nominal value of shares INR 10 each: 21
- Basic eamings per share 6.11 5.50
- Diluted earnings per share 6.11 5.50
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For SANMARKS & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants DEE Fabricom India Private Limited
ICAI Firm Reg. No - 000,
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Santosh Kumar Agtaw 1RID K.L. Bansal Ashima Bansal
Partner N Director Director
M No: 091127 DIN No. 01125121 DIN No. 01928449

Place : Faridabad
Date :22-05-2025



DEE Fabricom India Private Limited

Cash Flows for the Year ended March 31, 2025

(CIN: U28990HR2018PTC076325)

(Amt in INR Lacs)
Pariicalare Year ended Year ended
31-03-2025 31-03-2024
A.  Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before income tax 730.69 651.67
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amartisation expense 463.34 45149
Finance income (287 (4 64)
Finance costs 21021 29372
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,401.37 1,392.24
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/decrease m trade receivables (123.95) (1.63)
(Increase)/decrease in other Inventories 67.86 (531.09)
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets (18.49) (7.85)
(Increase)/decrease in other assets 8436 10037
Increase/(decrease) m trade payables 74.96 32299
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 3.00 548
Increase/(decrease) in financial liabilities - 12337
Increase/(decrease) m other liabilities 180.33 (87.72)
Cash generated/(used in) from operations 1,669.44 1316.16
Direct tax paid - -
Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating activities A 1,669.44 1316.16
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress and mntangible assets (51.55) (76.53)
Proceeds from redemption/ maturity of bank deposits (9.53) (60.49)
Interest recerved 287 4.64
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from investing activities B. (58.21) (13238)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings - 485.00
Repayment of borrowing (1,958 44) (33133)
Proceeds from short term borrowings (nef) 419 96 (48539)
Iuterest paid (216 89) (392.08)
Principle repayment of lease Labilities (43.76) (33.88)
Interest Paid on lease liabilities (18.99) (2023)
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from financing activities C. (1,818.12) (97791)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + Q) (206.89) 20587
Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 208.32 245
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 1.43 20832

Notes:

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard-7, "Statement of Cash Flows"

Particulars ARM I MANE. ot 2] Wil 204
2025

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 1.43 115

Balance with banks - 20717

Total 143 20832

For SANMARKS & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants , - NS GASS DEE Fabricom India Private Limited

ICAI Firm Reg. No /00033

M. No: 091127

Placc : Faridabad
Date - 22-05-2025
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DEE Fabricom India Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(CIN: U28990HR2018PTC076325)

(Amtin INR Lacs)

A. Equity share capital:

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid Ranlty Booves

No. INR
At 1 April 2023 90.00 900.00
Increase/ (decrease) during the year - -
At 31 March 2024 90.00 900.00
Increase/ (decrease) during the year e &
At 31March 2025 90.00 900.00

B. Other equity

Reserves and

Particulars Total
Surplus
Surplus in P&L

Balance as at 1 April 2024 (421.25) (421.25)
Add/ (less):
Profit for the year 549.47 549.47
Other comprehensive income for the year (0.02) (0.02)
Balance as at 31March 2025 128.19 128.19

e AR
Balance as at 1 April 2023 (917.05) 917.05)
Add/ (less):
Profit for the year 494 .65 494.65
Other comprehensive income for the year 1.3 1.15
Balance as at 31 March 2024 (421& (421.25
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For SANMARKS & ASSOCIATES DEE Fabricom India Private Limited
Chartered Accountants =
ICAI Fiom Reg. No.- 0003343]

ATl préL\.\rW ‘% &”"%J

Santosh Kumar Agra K.L. Bansal Ashima Bansal
Partner Director Director
M. No: 091127 DIN No. 01125121 DIN No. 01928449

Place : Fanidabad
Date - 22-05-2025



DEE Fabricom India Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31st, 2025
(CIN: U28990HR2018PTC076325)

1. Corporate Information

DEE Fabricom India Private Linited 1s mamly engaged m Heavy Metal Fabrication Business, The Company has manufacturing facilities at Kutch (Gujarat). The financial
statements were authorised for 1ssue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on Date - 22-05-2025

1 Significant Accounting Policies
a

Basis of preparation

The fi 1§ of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS5) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules. 2015 (as amended from time to time)

The financial statements of the company have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and labilities
(1) Certam financial assets and liabilities measured at far valie

(1) Defmed benefit plan- plan assets measured at fair value

The financial statements are presented in INR

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of meome and expenses of the period, reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent labilities at the date of rthe fmancial
statements and the results of operations duning the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best kmowledge of current events and actions,
actual results conld differ from these estimates. Difference between actual result and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known/materialise.

Current vs Non Current Classification
The Company presents assets and habilities m the balance sheet based on current’ non-current classification.

An asset 15 treated as current when i 15

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting peniod, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a lability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A babiliry is current when:

- Itis expected to be settied m normal operating cycle

- It1s held pnmarily for the purpose of tradmg

- It 15 due to be settled within rweive months after the reporting period, or

- There is no uncondirional right to defer the settlement of the lability for at least twejve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle 15 the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their reaisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified rwelve months
as its operating cycle

Foreign currencies

The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (TNR), which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Transaction and balances ) )
Transactions in foreign currencies are istially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the fransaction fust quakfies for
recogmtion. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate 1f the average approxsmates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and Labilities denonunated i foresgn currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.
Exchange differences ansing on setrlement or translanon of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit and loss

Non-menetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost i a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the mitial transactions. Non-
monetary atems measured at fax value m a foreign currency are translated usmg the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determmed. The gain or loss arismg»on
trandlation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated m line with the recognition of the gam or loss on the change mn far value of the item (1.e., translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised i OCT or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Company had avazled the option of Para 46 A if AS 11 under previous GAAP and also same option hay been conminued under IND AS a:pu‘ option givezi und.cr_ IND AS
101 and accordmgly exchange differences arising on translation of long-term foreign currency monetary items for the period ending before the beg of the
first Ind AS financial reporting penod is deferredcapitalised. A long-term foresgn cwrency monetary stem is an em having a tezm of 12 months or more at the date of its
ongmation.




Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the
payment 15 bemg made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. taking inte account contractually defined terms of payment and

excludmg taxes of duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the prmempal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary
obligor in all the revenue arangements.

Based on the Educational Material on Ind AS 18 issued by the ICAL the Company has assumed that recovery of excise duty flows to the Company on its own account. This
s for the reason that it is a hiability of the nanufacturer which forms part of the cost of production, irespective of whether the goods are sold or not. Since the recovery of
excise duty flows to the Company on its own account, revenue mcludes excise duty. However, sales tax/ value added tax (VAT) / Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not

received by the Company on 1ts own account. Rather. it 1s tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordmgly. it is
exchuded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised

Sale of Goods

Revenue from the sale of goods 15 recognised when the significant nisks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods.
Revenue from the sale of goods 15 measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recervable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

Rendering of Services
Revenue from erection and services and revenue from job work s recognised as per the contractual terms and as and when services are rendered.

Interest Income
For alt debt instunents measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective inferest rate

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration m exchange for goods or services transfemed to the customer If the Company performs by transferrmg goods or services to a
c before the ¢ pays consideration or before payment is due. a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.c., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration 1 due). Refer to accounting policies of fmancial assets m section (p) Financial mstrumens — inital Tecogmition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract Bability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration {or an amount of consideraton is due)
from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company wansfers goods or services to the customer, a contract hability 14 recognised when the payment is
made or the payment s due (whichever is eartier). Contract liabiliries are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract

Government Crants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be receved and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it 1s recognised as mcome on a systematic basis over the periods that the refated costs, for which it is ded to comp , are d. When
the grant relates to an asset. it is recognised as an income i equal amounts over the expected useful bfe of the related asset.

oy

When the Company recesves grant for non-monetary assets, the assetand the grant are recorded ar fair value amounts and released to Profit or Loss over the expected useful
life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset ie. by equal anmal instaiments. When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or
related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a govemment grant The loan or
assistance 15 imtially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference berween the initial carrying value of the loan and the
proceeds receaved. The loan 15 subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to fmancial liabilites.

Taxation

Current income fax

Current meome tax assets and habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorsties. The tax rates and tax laws used to
cotnpute the amouat are those that are enacted or substantsvely enacted, at the reporting date

Current meome tax relating to stems recognised outside profit or loss 15 recogmsed outsde profit or loss (either in other comprehenssve income or i equity). Current tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCT or drectly in equity, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to sxuatons in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establshes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax s provided usmg the Liabilty method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and kabilities and ther carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax lmbalities are recognised for ali taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax hability arises from the mitial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the camry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred fax assets are
recognised to the exrent that it is probabie that raxable profir will be available agamst which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward on \}nuwd tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the inirial recoguition of an asset or
liabihity in a transaction that 1s not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.




i

Thg carrying amousnt of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 1o longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
avaiable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utiised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that futuse taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and Kabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the habilaty 15 settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss 15 recognised outside profit or toss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recoguised m correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCT or directly m equity

Defierred tax includes Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) and recognises MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convmemg evidence that the Company
will pay normal income tax during the specified period i.e. the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The Company reviews the "MAT credit
ennrlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have any convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the
specified period,

For operations carried out under tax holiday period (80LA benefit of Income Tax Act, 1961), defared tax asset or Babilities if any, have been established for the tax
consequences of those temporary differences between the camymg values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases that reverse after the tax holiday period ends.

Property, Plant and Equipment

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continve with the carrymg value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transition
date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as at the transition date.

Capital work m progress is stated at cost, net of accunmiated mpairment loss, if any. All the property, plant and equipment i stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost inchudes the cost of replacmg part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects
if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipient are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on
their specific usefil lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition cntena are satisfied. All other repair and mamtenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as meurred

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates plant and machineries of pipmg division over estimated useful
lives of 10 to 25 years which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful
lives are reabistic and reflect fax approximation of the period over which the asscts are likely to be used.

In case of other assets, depreciation has been provided on straight hine method on the economuc useful life prescnbed by Schedule II to the Companies Act2013.
Depreciation on addition to or on disposal of Fixed Asset is calculated on pro rata basis. Addition, to Fixed Assets costmg less than or equal to Rs. 5,000 are depreciated
fully in the year of purchase.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no fiture sconomic benefits are expected from
1ts use of disposal. Any gain or loss ansing on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is mcluded i the statement of profit and 1oss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of propesty, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost Following mitial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accunmiated impairment losses, if any

Amortisation of the finite mtangible assets 1 allocated on systematic basis over the best estumate of their useful life and accordingly softwares are amortised on straight line
basis over the period of sx years or license period which ever is lower.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the nat disposal proceeds and the carrymg amount of the asset and
are recognised in the statement of profir or loss when the asset 15 derecognised. The Company has no intangible assets with an mdefimite life.

Borrowing Cost ) ‘ 7

Bormrowng costs directly attributabie to the acqusition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get md‘y for its infended
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period m which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of mterest and
other costs that an entity mcurs m connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cest also mchudes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustmenn to the
borrowing costs.

Leases
The Company assesses at contract mception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the nght to control the use of an identified asset for a

period of time m exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee i
The Company appties a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-tenmn leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises
Iease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.




The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is avaifable for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and imyg nt losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease hiabilities. The cost of nght-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease hiabilities recognised. initial direct costs incurred, and lease paymeuts made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful frves of the assets, as follows

Useful life (years)
Particulars As per Management
Leasehoid Land 510
Leasehold Land 4

1f ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease tem or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using
the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impamment. Refer to the accountmg policies in section (2 n) Impairment of non-financial
assets.

(b) Lease Liabilities

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease 15 not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amouat of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying of lease habak 5T if there is a on, a change 1o the lease tenn, a change in the lease payments or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company appiies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (.., those leases that have alease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It akso applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment
that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental mcome from
operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis aver the term of the relevant lease, Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arrangmg an operating lease are added
to the camymg amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rerts are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantiatly all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under
fmance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods 50 as to reflect a constant
peniodic rate of return on the net investment ousstanding i respect of the lease

Inventories

Inventories are valued as follows:-

Raw materials, Stores, Spares, Other Materials and Traded  Lower of cost and net realizable vatue. However, materials and other supplies held for use in the production

Goods of mventories are not written down below cost if the finished products m which they will be incorporated, are
expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost 1s deternined on weighted average cost basis.

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Fimshed goods Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing cosrs. Cost is
determuned on weighted average cost bass.

Job Work Jobs under execution (ncluding materals supplied to clients under the contract) to the extent of work done
but not billed i valued at the lower of actual cost mcurred upte the completion on reporting date and net
realizable value. Cost mchudes direct matersals, labour and proportionate overheads.

Work in Progress Work in Progress is valued at the lower of actual cost incurred or net realizable value, Cost includes direct
materials, labour and proportionate overheads.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of compietion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Twpairment of non-financial assets X ) ‘ J

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be mpaired. If any indication exists, or when aml Impaiment testing foran
asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash nflows ml are l_mgdy
independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. When the carrymg amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impared and is written down to its recoverable anount.,

Provisions ! )

A provision 1s recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a resuit of past event and it is probable that an outflow of ms'ourtef will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liabdity.




Retirement and other employee benefits

() Retirement benefit m the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident
fund. The Company recogmizes contnbution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contributon payable
to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contnbution already pasd, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a Habikty after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recoguized as an asset (o the extent that the pre-payment will fead to. for example. a reduction i future payment or a cash refiund.

(#) Gratuity 15 a defined bene fit plan and provision is bemg made on the basis of actuarial vahiation carried out by an independent actuary at the year end using projected
unit credst method, and is contnbuted to the Gratuity fund managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of Indua

Remeasurenents, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and
the refum on plan assets (excluding amounts mcluded in net interest on the net defined benefit Hability), are recognised mmediately in the balance sheet with 2
corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings through OCT in the period i which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

» The date of the plan amendsent or curtailment. and

¥ The date that the Group recognises refated restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defmed benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss:

B Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtaiiments and non-routine seftlements; and
b Net interest expense or income

Compensated Absences
Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, 1s treated as short-term empioyee benefit The Company measures the expected cost of such
absences as the additional amout that it expects to Pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reportmg date.

The Company weats accunmuiated leave expected to be camied forward beyond rwetve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuanal valiation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial ganslosses are immediately taken
fo statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occwr, The Company presents the entire leave as a current Liability in the balance sheet, smce it doesnot have an
unconditsonal right to defer its settiement for 12 months after the reportmg date.

Financial instrumsents

A financ@l mstrument 1s any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a fmancial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial asvets

Initial recogunition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised mnitially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, te., the date that the Company comumits to purchase or sell the asser.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categonies:

> Debt instruments at amortised cost

»- Debt imstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

» Debt instruments, derivatives and equiry instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
> Equity instruments measured at fair valie through other comprebensive mcome (FVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A 'debt strument” 15 measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

) The assetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of prmcipal and mterest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amornsed cost is calculated by
faking into account any discounr or premmm on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is mcluded in finance income m the
profit or loss. The losses ansing from mpaurment are recognised im the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A 'debt mstrument’ 15 classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
) The objective of the busi model 15 achieved both by collectmg contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. ‘ L2
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value Fair vahie movements are recognized in the other
comprehemsive mcome (OCI)




Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCT, is classified
as at FVTPL

In addition, the Conpany may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCT criteria. as at FVTPL However, such elaction is

allowed only if domg so reduces or ehmmates a measurement or recognition mconssstency (referred to as "accountmg mismatch'). The Company has not designated any debt
mstrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at farr value with all changes recogruzed m the P&L.

Equity investments
All equity investments i scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an
acquarer in a business combmation to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVIPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election

to present m‘mhcr comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an mstrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is
made on mitial recognition and 1s irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all far value changes on the mstument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There
1s no recyclng of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of mvestment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity

Equity mstruments mcluded within the FVTPL category are measured at fair vakue with all changes recognized i the P&L.

Derecognition

A fmancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is prmarily derecognssed (1.¢. removed from the
Company’s balance sheet) when:

» The rights to recenve cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Company has transfemed its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay toa
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and ether () the Company has transferred substanrially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transfesred nor retamed substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through amangement, it evaliates if and to What extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When 1t has nesther transferred nor refained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transfemed control of the
asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s contmuing mvolvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated babality. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a bass that reflects the nights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Contiming involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset 1s measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required o repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) mode! for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets. The
Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss aliowance on Trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather. it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its mutial recognition.

For recognition of mupamment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determmes that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit nisk
smce initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impainment loss. However, if credit nsk has mcreased
significantly, lifetime ECL 15 used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the mstrument maproves such that there is no longer a significant mcrease in credit risk since
wnitial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit fosses resulting from all possble default events over the expected life of a financal mnstrument, The 12-month ECL i a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference berween all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive
(e, all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estmiating the cash flows, an entity 1 required to consider

P All contractual terms of the financial instrument (cluding prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the fmancial instument. However, in
rare cases when the expected hfe of the fmancial mstrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity 15 requared to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
mstrument

» Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are mtegral to the contractual terms

ECL mpamment loss allowance (or reversal) recogmized during the penod 1s recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount 15
reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ m the P&L.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabikities are classified, at mitial recognition, as fmancial liabilities at far value through profit or loss. loans and bomowings, trade and other payables,

All fimancial liabilities are recognised mitially at far value and, m the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company's financial Liabilities mchude trade and other payables, loans and borrowmgs including cash credit and financial guarantee contracts.




Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their chssification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss inchude financial labilities held for trading and financial liabilies designated upon initial recognition as at fair vahe
through profit or loss. Financial labilities are classified as held for trading if they are mcwred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
denvative fmancial instraments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments i hedge relanionships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on hiabilities held for tradng are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the mutial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in
Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For Liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair vatue gamns/ losses attributable to changes m own credit risk are recognized in OCT. These gains/ loss arc
not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cunmlative gam or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such lmbility are
recognised i the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any fmancial liability as at fair value through Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial Lability 15 derecognised when the obligation under the lability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the tems of an existng babulity are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification i treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new habulity. The difference i the fespective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Derivative financial iustruments

The Company uses derivative fmanctal instruments, such as forward cwrency contracts to hedge its foreign currency nsks respectively. Such denvative financial

are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered mto and are subsequently re-measured at fair valie. Derivatives are carried as
fmancial assers when the fair value 1 positive and as financial habilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gams or losses ansing from changes mn the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.

Fair Value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, dervarsves ar fair value ateach balance sheet date

Fair value is the price that would be receved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Liability in an orderly transaction between market partcipants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement 1s based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» In the pnincspal market for the asset or liability, or

» In the absence of a pnncipal market in the most advantageous market for the asset or lmbility

The principal or the most advantageous market nust be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a ability s measured using the asswnptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or Lability, assuming that market
participants act i their cconomic best inferest.

A fatr vakie ofa fi I asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use
of by sellg it to another market pasticipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company wses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circwmstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and mumnusing the use of unobservabie mputs.

All assets and labiliies for which fax value is measured of disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level mput that 1s ugnificant to the far valie measurement as a whole:

» Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for adentical assets or liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 1s significant to the far value measurement is directiy or indirectly observable

» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fax value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised i the fmancial gatements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels m the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vahie measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determmes the policies and procedures for recurring fair value measurement. such as derivative instruments and unquoted fmancial assets
measured at fair value

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assers and liabil which are required to be rem d or re d as per the
Company's accountmg policies. The management also compares the change w the fair value of each asset and liabiity with relevant | sources to d whether
the change 1s reasonable

For the purpose of far value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and habilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or
liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explamed above,

Contingent liability )
A contingent lability is a possible obligation that anises from past events whose exastence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be rgquued o
settle the obligation. A contingent hability also arwwes in extremely rare cases, where there is a liabikity that cannot be recognised because 1t cannot be‘meawred reliably. The
Company does not recognise a contingent Hability but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

Provisions and contingent liabikties are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
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Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internai repoiting provided to the Board of Directors identified as chief operating decision-maker (CODM).
The CODM 15 responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, Segments are orgamised based on type of services delivered or
provided Segment revenue ansing from third party customers is reported on the same basis as revenue in the standalone Ind AS financial swtements Segment results

represent profits before unallocated corporate expenses and taxes. “Unallocated Corporate Expenses” include expenses that relate to costs attributable to the Conpany as a
whole and are not attributable to segments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an origmal marunity of three months or less, which are
subject to an msignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows. cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above as they are considered an integral part of
the Company's cash management.

Earnings per share

Basic camings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (after tax) for the year attributable to equaty sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share when applicable are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (after tax) for the year aturib to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares which would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares Dilutive potential equity shares when
applicable are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

New and amended Standard
The Company applied for the first-time certamn standards and amendments, which are effective for anual periods begmning on or after 1 Apnl 2024. The Company has not early adopted

any standard, mter o dment that bas been 1ssued but 13 not yet effactive

() Ind AS 117 Inswance Contracts

The Mimstry of Carporate Affaus (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide notification dated 12 August 2024, undes (he Compames (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2024, which 15 effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024

Ind AS 117 Inswrance Contracts is a comprebensive new accounting standard for mswmce contracts covering ftion and p! 1on and disch .Ind AS 117
replaces Ind AS 104 Incurance Contracts. Ind AS 117 applses to all types of insurance contracts, regardless of the type of entities that issue them as well as to certain guarantees and financial
mstruments with discretionary participation features; a few scope exceptions will apply Ind AS 117 is based on a general model, supplemented by:

* A specific adaptation for contracts with direct particpation features (the variable fee approach)

* A suuplified approach (the 1 approach) mainly for short-duration cantracts

The application of Ind AS 117 does not have material wnpact on the Company's separate financial statements as the Company has not entered any contracts in the nature of insusance
contracts covered under Ind AS 117.

(i) Amendments to Ind AS 116 Leases ~ Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Compauies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback.
The dy pecifies he requis that a seffer-fessee uses in measuring the lease lability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction. to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise

any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains,

The amendment 1 effective for mumual reporting periods beguming on or after 1 April 2024 and must be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into afier the date
of mitial application of Ind AS 116.

The amendments do not have a matenal impact on the Company's finaucial statements.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The below tvo amendiments are not yet notified but expected to be notified soon. Once notfied, these could be added on below lines.

(DAmendments to Ind AS 7 and Ind AS 107 - lier Finance A ts

PP B

The MCA issued amendments to Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and Ind AS 107 Financial Instuments: Disclosures which clanify the characteristics of supplier finance arrangements
and require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure requi in the d are intended to assist wsers of financial statements in understanding the effects of
supplier fmance arrangements on an entity’s habilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidsty risk.

(i)Amendments to Ind AS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The MCA 1ssued amendments to parngraphs 62 to 76 of Ind AS | to specify the requirements for classifying libilities as current or non-cutrent. The amendments clanfy:

* What 15 meant by a nghtto defer settiement

» Thata right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

* That classification is maffected by the likeldsood that an entity will exercise ite deferral right

» That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself a equity mstrument would the terms of a libility not impact its classification 1 )

In addition, a requirement Lias been introduced to require disclosure when a liability arising from a loan agreement is classified as non-cunent and the eatity's night to defer seitlement s
cantingent on compliance with fture covenants within twelve months




DEE Fabricom India Private Limited
Notes fo the financial statements for the Year ended March 31st, 2028
(CIN: U28000HR 201 SPTC076325)

(Amt in INR Lacs )
3 Property, plant and equipment
Hlectrical
Particulars Buildings Fumtre & punta y fnstallations and  Office equi Bibor vebletey | Soputaracd T Capital work-in-
ugy data processing progress
equipment
Gross block
As at 01 April 2023 1502.24 46.31 2405133 141.68 243 20.21 3138 423958 =
Additions = 0.45 6589 - 1.07 - 9.09 7650 -
Disposal - - 2 & = s i 2 i
As at 31 March 2024 1502.24 46.76 286122 141.68 A5 20.21 4047 4316.08 &
Additions 38.17 178 6507 - - - 295 10797
Disposal - : -104.28 - . - - -104.28 -
As at 31 March 2025 1540.41 48.54 2522.01 141.68 .50 20.21 43.42 4310.77] . |
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2023 438 38 1274 83463 4410 065 9.91 19.82 136023 -
Charge for the yeax 14111 459 23984 13.50 0.44 239 914 411.00 -
Disposal’ Adjustnent - - = . 5 a =
As at 31 March 2024 579.49 17.33 107447 57.60 1.00 12.30 18.06 177124 -
Charge for the year 142.04 464 24328 1346 042 238 637 41260 -
P p ik 2 i 4785 L 5 - 2 4785 -
As at 31 March 2025 721.53 2097 1269.90 7106 151 14.68 3533 113598 -
Net Block:
As at 31 March 2024 9278 2043 1486.75 84.08 241 7.9 1151 254484 -
As at 31 March 2028 518.88 26.57 125211 70.62 1.99 553 8.09 2183.79 -
A, Capital work in progress (CWIP) Ageing Schedule
Az at 31 March 2025 ‘Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
DNR lacs INR lacs INR lacs INR lacs INR lacs
Projects m progress 5 2 3 : %
Projects 3 ded = 3 ) - .
Total - - ¥ Z =
As at 31 March 2024 Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
INR INR INR INR INR
Projects m progress - - = \d ’
Projects ity suspended . : - ’ s
Total - - o = z

(a) There are no projects where activity has been suspended. Also there are no projects as on the reporting penod which has exceeded cost as conpared fo its original plan or where completion is overdue.




DEE Fabricom India Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31st, 2025
(CIN: U28990HR2018PTC076325)

(Amt in INR Lacs)
3(b) Intangible assets
Particulars Software
Gross block
As at 1 April 2023 3.24
Additions -
Disposal -
As at 31 March 2024 3.24
Additions -
Disposal -
As at 31 March 2025 3.24
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2023 1.05
Charge for the year 0.97
Disposal -
As at 31 March 2024 2.02
Charge for the year 0.96
Disposal i -
As at 31 March 2025 2.98
Net Block:
As at 31 March 2024 1.22

As at 31 March 2025 0.26




DEE Fabricom India Private Limited
Notes to the Sinancial statements for the Year ended March 31st, 2025
{CIN: U2BPP0HR2DISPTCOT63125)

(Amt in INR Lacs)
4 Financial aswets
(A) Trade receivables
Current
Particulars Asat Avat
31 March 2028 31 March 2024
Umecured, considered roed
“Trade receivaties $31.84 50788
Total recelmbles $IL84 50788
Trade saceivables Agai £ U ul: Racei s - considered good
Oubitanding for follewing poriods from dus date of payuiant As '; Axw
31 March
Currentbut net due 1 nn
Lass than & Months 460.05 41508
& manths - 1 year 3508 683
1-2 yeurs 16.40 4
2-3 yaass : :
More than 3 years 2 5
Total $3184 £07.88

No trade or ofhier receivable are dus from dizectors or other officers of the tompany either sevarally or jointly with any ether person, Nor any wade or othar raceivable ase duwe from firms or privam companiss,
respectively in which any dizecror  a paner, s director or a riember ecceptas discloved above

Trade receivables are non-mistest bearing and are genarally om terme of 0 10 120 days

“For terms and conditions relating 10 Related parry receivables, refar note 24

(@) Cashand cash equivalents

Ny Current Current
Particolars A Al Al Asoat As b
31 March 202§ 31 March 2024 31 March 202§ 31 March 2024
Cash on hand - - 143 115
On cach cradit accounts 2 - - 207.17
Total = L4 10832
1O Other bapk balance: el than cash and caxh
Particulars At st Asat
31 March 2008 31 Mardh 1024
* Fixad deposit with eriginal manity for more than three month butupo 1 yart 8758 i ad
Total other bank balsuces s i nam—
As ar 31 Mach 2025, the company had availsble INR. 188 87 Lacs. (as a131 March 2024 Rs. 19 3% Lacs) of undrawn borrowing facilities
(D Other financial msets
Nou Curreat Cwvent
Particalar s ot Asat Asat Asat
o 31 March 2025 31 March 204 31 March 2025 31 March 1024
Financial assets classified at amorfised cout:
Tarm deposits with original maruriry less than 12 momths®
Intarestreceivable = - 0se o
Security depatite 26.51 47584 0o 018
Total 8651 5784 278 38
* Dapocits given as margin money against Non-fund based facilities,
Nt dedt reconciliation
This section s oatan analysis of net dsdt and the movements u uet debt for each of the year preventad
Particular Loaceliabilition ()  oncmre s Totsl
i -~ Borrewing Bocrowings
Net debtas at 1 April 2023 106.99 153510 1Le01 90 3,743 99
Cash flows (5411 {88150) 149.87 (585 83)
Addition 35.1% - - 3519
Interest expens & 20.23 20054 1285 wmn
Inmrest paid - Q6034 (1295) (37349
Transacrion cost adjustment 2 Z <
Nat debtas & 31 March 2024 108.30 1,853 51 1,151.77 3,113 88
X Non current Current
Particulars Leaselinbilities () oo haslre Tl
Net dedbras @t 1 April 2024 108.30 1853 51 118077 31358
Cash florws (8275 (@5795) (670.53) {1,601 23)
Additien 3378 - - 3375
Disposal sm - - Q357
Intgest axpens 1899 17957 433 20089
Interestpaid . a®sn @35 (183 50
Trausaction cost adfustinant g z o '
Net debras of 31 March 2025 198 73 985 56 48124 1,862 53




DEE Fabricom Indis Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31st, 2025

{CIN: U28990HR201BPTCOTEI2S)

(Amt in INR Lac
3 Other Assets
New Cwrrent Current
Asat Asat Asat Asat
Particulars
31 March 2028 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Capital advances - - - .
Prepaid expenses # L 1.2¢ 278
Incowm e Tax Racoverable = - 9335 8140
Advance 1o suppliers T = 477 588
Advance 1o muployees = £ 0.25 -
Balbnce with Government authonties = Z 1595 105060
Total other msety z 114,68 199.04
4 Inveutories
{Value at lowar of cosr and net Curreat

Particulars

Asat As
31 March 2028 A1 March 2024

Comsumable Material

61262 68048




DEE Fabricom Indis Private Limiled

Notes to the financial stntements for the Vear ended March 31st, 2025

(CIN: 28590 HR2 016P TCOTOI25)

(Amstin INR Lacy)

T Equity share capital
(A Authorised share canital:

Particalars
2 As at
NedSam e 2028

Asat] Asril 204 100.00 1,000.60
Inerasca (dacrene) during the yua 150.00 1,008
Asat 31 March 2024 150,00 250000
Increase’ (decrease) during the year - "
Atatal March 2026 25000 150000

)

Ternn/ rights attached to equity shares:

The company has only one clas of equiry sharss having par value of [NR 10 per share, Each shasbolder is entitled 1o one vote per share. The dividend except innim dividend proposad by the Beard of Directors.

is subject 10 the approval of he shareholders in the sntuing Annual General Meeting.

1€y Twued souity capital

Particulars

. As at
Na. of Shares 31 March 2026
Eaquity shares of INR 1¢ ¢ach fviued subscrided and fully vaid
Avatl Avril 2023 90.00 $00.00
Iicrease’ {decrease) during the year - -
Asat 31 March 2024 0.90 90000
Inceme’ (decranse) during the ysar - .
Asnt 31 March 2025 $0.00 $00.00
(DY Details of sharsholders holdiug more than 58 share in the Commany
As at 31 March 1025 A ut 31 March 2024

o of Shares % of holding No_of Shares 4% of holding

Dee Development Enpineers Lid (Halding eompany) 40.60 1604 $0.00 1008

{ meluding nomines sharskolder)

Aupas necerds of the Company, including its regisver of sharsholders’ memben and other

beneficial ownership of shares.

received from

(E) Theearsnoequity shares issued asbonus, shares issied for Consideation other than cash and shares bought back durin g the paried of fiva years immedianly precedmg the reportin g dare.

@ Promotr sharsholting .

Details of shares held by promoters

Asat 31 March 2028

reganding benaficial imerest, the above sharsholding represents both legal and

§Ne.

Promoter Name

No. of shares at the

Change during the

No.of shares at the

% of Total Shares

%% change during

Degiauming of the year year md of the year the year
Eaquitv shares of INR 10 sach fully paid
1 Dee Develoment Enginerss Lid. 20.00 8000 100.00%
Total 20.00 $0.00 100.608
Ayat 31 March 2024
= No of dsares atthe  Change during the . of shares at the % change during
5No. Pramoter Name Vg o Ve ey Four ol the yoia %4 of Total Shares Boyenr
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid
1 Dos Doveloment Enginears Lid. $#0.00 0000 100 08
Tota] 5000 — 2000 100,008
* Bated on the raquirements of Schadule 1
8  Othe Equity
Particulars o e
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Surplus in the statement of profit and loys
Opsing balance (21.26) 917,06
Add: Profit for the year SG.J: 404,85
Other comprehensive income. (lovs) for the year (0.82) 11§
Closing balance {421.26)
#  Borrowings
(A)  New-current berrowiags
N uwrrent Cmrent
i Asnt Asat As at 5
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Secured
Term Lown
12
8. From Banks (refer note 3 balow) 848 12908 20038 2104
¢ Unsecurad loans
{i) From Holding Company $00.00 1.00000 - 160.00
{ii) From NBFC 5658 12445 68.08 80.73
{iii) From Director - 50000 - 110 00
#8550 1,853 51 20846 115177
Less: carrent maturivies of long term debts discloted under 'dhont tem A (268 48) [ARE R
borrowings (refer note § (B))
Toal 9536 L5351 10848 _LBLTT
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Notes to the financial stntements for the Year ended March 31st, 2025

(CIN: U28990 HR2DIBPTCOTEIIE)

’ {Amt in INR Lacy)
Repsvment Schedule of long term borrowing - non<urrest:
As at Asat
31 March 1028 31 Mawch 2024
Farticulary INR Repayment INR Repayment
Secured Loany
1 equal quarterly
instalments and 18
Presently 8% 103 8% (31 March
o 2014 8% 108 80%) A ey
installments
P . 25% 024 ;
(@ ns:m)yﬂ 5%, (31 March 2024 T 6 aqual menthly 104,15 18 equal monihly
#25%) tnsralments insralments
Umsecured Loans
Presently 12% (31 Mach 2024 : 681 % equal monthly 12445 21 equalmowhly
;2‘-! 3 insralzments =5 instalments
resantly 10% (31 March 2024 :
iy 100 01 Muck 30 $00.00 On demmd 100000  Ondemmd
Interest Gee loans fom Dizecions - 30000 Oa danmd
Notes

(B)  Curventborrewines

Tem loan of Rs. 229,06 Lacs (31 Manch 2024: INR 950.10 Lacs) from bank secured by Immovable property or any interest therein; Book debrs,; Floating charge; Movsble
Ppropaty (uot being pledge) of the company, parvonal guarantee of promoters and corperate guatantes of DEE Development Enginears Limited,

Asat Asat
Particular
% N March2035 31 March 1024
Secured
Cash credirs (refer nore (a) below)
Cach cyadic 2127 -
Curremtmaturities of long-term dabis (refar note P{A) ) 288,46 LISLTY
Total 48128 PRTIRES
Note:
Secured by firsf chazge on current assan including viock and book debts, parsonal pumrantee of premoters and corporate guarentse of DEE DevelopaimtEn plneers Lid.
1#  Other financial labilities
Noa Cwrrent Current
< As at As at As at Asat
Retitme JIMarch 2025 31March2024 31 March2025 31 March 2024
Finnacial liabilities dasified at nmortbed cost
Intarest a<aued md not due on bexrewings - 8770 12337
Total other Gasncisl Labilites - : JLI0 11331
1A Lease Linbulitiey
Non Current Cwrvent
As Asat Avat Asat
Tefisates 31 March 2028 I March 2004 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Finnncial liabilities dassified at mmortived cost:
Leas Liabilities * 151.88 16315 4384 45.15
Total other fuancial liabilities 151,88 1615 e 41
* The effective interest ate for lease liabilities is 10%
11 Provisiens
Noa Current Current
: “ A at Asat Asat
Foatiatac 31 March 2025 Il March 2024 JIMarch2025 31 March 2024
Provisions for grarumy 1387 1150 018 018
Provision for compensared absences T8 - 044 749
Total provisiens ALl ALE0 [ 165,
12 Other lisbilities
Current
Asat Asat Asat Asat
L 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Statutory dues = 0% 15.68
Advmnce received from customens 3 = 178.8) L;;
Total other liabilities 3 0.1 I
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13 Income tax

Asnt March 31, 2028

Recognisved Recognized in OCI
Particulars Asat in staement Asat
31 March 2024 of profit and 31 March 2025
dpas.

Provisien for employes benefins (4.80) [CR] 001) (5.56)

Leas lisbilities (5240 316 = (49.26)

Ottrers Q5465 2180 - (32.85)

Deferred tax assets (A) B1187) 24120 {0.01) (87.47)

Propury, plant and and other assen wd 102.65 (IR - 6436

amortisarian

Right of uce sceate w691 “99) - 2n

Deferred tax Liabilities (8) 149 68 (3T T - 104.58

Net deferrad tax (Labilities) (A - B) (16231 1211 1891

The Company offiers tax assers and Linbilities if and ouly if ithas a legally eaforceatle right to ser off currenttax assws and current max liabilities and the deferred fax astets and deferred rax lisbiities Jelate 10 income

taxes levied by the same tax suthoriry

14 Tradse Pavables

Current

Particulars

Asat
3 March 2005

Avat
31 March 2024

Trade pajyables *
Total trade pave bles
Terne: and conditions of the above Ganucial linbilities:

- Trade payables are nen-inverest baaring and are nomally sattled on 0 1o 80 days tams

-For rerms and conditims relating w Related party payatble, refer nove 24

* Includes follewing :
- Amepances

Trade Faysble Ageing Schedule
Asat 3] March 2025

Towl sutstanding dues of micro enterprises md small mierprises
Tonl surtanding dues of editors other than mico miaprives and
small enterprives

Disputed duas of and wmall emterp

Disputad duw of craditers othay tham micre mmprices and tmall
emarprives

‘Qutstandmg for fellowing parisds from due date of paymast

85784 J82 67

RIS .1 NS 1% 1

Netdue (Inciuding Less than L year 1-2 years
unbiled)

2-3 years

More thand years

AT 96 %549

on

1007

IOTAL

1798 9549 390

022

1007

Asat 3l March 2024

Tonl cutstanding dues of rucro

euternrises and small entervrises

Tonl oustanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

Dispued dues of micro enferprises and small enzerprises

Dispued dues of creditors oihes han micre eiaprises and small
anterprises

fox fallowing periods from due date of payment

Notdue (ncloding  Lessthanlyer 1-2years
ankiled),

2dvean

More than 3 vears

T47.64 038

TOTAL

3487 14784
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15 Revenue from operation

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Sale of service:

Job work 4,907.52 3374.93
G Other operating income 156.53 351.41
‘otal revenue from contracts with customers 5.064.05 372634
16  Other income
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Interest recerved from bank 287 4.64

Rent mcome 16196 136.20

Interest on mcome tax Refund 305 1.51

Miscellaneous Incame 11.38 =

Total other income 179.26 142.35
17 Employee benefit expenses

Pariicaars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Salaries, wages and bomus 19297 13757
Contribution to provident and other funds 1154 1116
Gratuity expense (refer note 23) 449 4.18
Staff welfare expenses 1373 1141
Total employee benefit expenses 42273 364.32

18  Depreciation and amortization expense

Year ended Year ended
Rartheston 31March 2028 31 March 2024
Depreciation on tangible assets (refer note 3 Property, plant and equipment) 412 60 411.00
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 3 (b) Intangible assets) 0.96 097
Depreciation on nght of use assets (refer note 32) : 49 78 39.52
Total depreciation and amortization expense 463.34 451.49

19 Other expenses

Particul Year ended Year ended

e 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Consumption of stores and spare parts 222605 118699
Fabrication and job charges 620.72 46026
Repar & Mamtenance 5894 3604
Office and factory mamtenance 12.06 11.92
Rent 14247 13227
Rates and taxes 1.70 1389
Insurance 15.16 14.59
Power, Fuel and water charges 176.81 12969
Inspection & Testing 746 824
Auditor's renmineration 325 500
Legal and professional 41.69 2882
Travelling and conveyance expense 30.90 28.66
Bark Charges 5.37 8§21
Loss on sale/Discard of fixed assets 2696 0.00
Donation 0.05 005
Security and servicmg charpes 2459 2074
Printing & Stationery 228 4 31
Internet Charges 3.20 320
Miscellaneous 16.68 1421

Total 3,41634 2.10749
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(Amt in INR Lacs)
Payment to auditors : Tt vt Aoz wnleh
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
As auditor:
- Stanwory audit fee 325 5.00
Total 3.25 5.00

20 Finance costs

Particulars 3 Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest Expense
- on term loans 73.26 134.54
- on others 433 12.95
- on unsecured loan (Holding company) 106.31 126.00
lnterest on lease lability 18.99 2023
Other borrowing cost 732 -
Total 21021 293.72_

21  Earnings per share (EPS)

Buasic EPS amounts i calcuiated by dividmg the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity
shares outstanding during the year.

Diuted EPS amounts i calculated by dnviding the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (afler adjusting for interest on the convertibie
preference chares) by the weighted average number of Equaty shares outstainding during the year plus the weighted average mumber of Equity shares that
would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potenrial Equity shares into Equity shares

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

Year ended Year ended
F ATt 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Profit attnbutable to equity holders of the Company for basic and diluted eammgs (A) 34947 404,65
‘Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic and diuted EPS* (B) 90.00 90.00
Earnings per share (A/B)

- Basic earnings per share 6.11 5.50
- Diluted eamings per share 6.11 5.50

* The weighted average nunber of shares takes mto account the weighted average effect of changes in treasury share transactions during the year. There have
been no transaction involvmg Equity shares or potential Equity shares during the year
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22 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make Judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the camrying amount of assets
or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, management has made the followin g judgements, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared Existing circumstances and

assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or cireumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

- Impairment of non-financial assets

Impawrment exists when the camrying value of an asset or cash generatng umt exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value m use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales
transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value
in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring
activities that the Company is not yet commutted to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being
tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

- Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available agamst which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recogunised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits topether with future tax planning strategies.

- Defined benefit plans (gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determimation
of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities mvolved m the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determming the appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest
rates of government bonds with term that correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to
demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

- Fair value measurement of financial instruments

‘When the fair values of financial assets and financial Labilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techmiques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes m assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments.
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13 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

A. Defined benefit plans - general description

The Company has a defined gratuity benefit plan. Every employee who completes service of five years or more, gets a gratuity, of 15 days salary (last drawn
salary) for each completed year of service.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognised m the Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded status and amounts
1ecognised in the balance sheet for the plan (based on actsarial valuation) :

Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefit expense recognized in the employee cost:

Fatbiiars . Year ended Year ended
31 march 2025 31 march 2024
Service cost 165 3.5
Met intarast cost 084 0.66
Exp guived in the st of profit and loss 449 4,18

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulare Year ended Year ended

31 march 2028 31 march 2024
Net actuanal (gain)’ loss recognised in the year (0.02) 135
Expenses recoguised in the other comprebensive income 0.02) 155

Balance sheet

Benefit asset/ liability

. Year ended Year ended
rticula
Sy 31 march 2025 31 March 204
Present value of defined obligation at the end of the year 1415 11.66

Less : Fair value of the plan aseets at the end of the year -

Net present value of defined benefit obligation LilS 1L

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Piiticulais Year ended Year ended

31 march 2025 31 March 204
Opening defined benefit obligation 11.66 9.03
Service cost 365 352
Interest cost 084 0.66
Benefits paid (2.02) =
Actuazial (gam) loss on obligation 0.02 {1.55)
Closing defined benedfit obligation 14.15 11.66

B. The principal actuarial ptions used i determining gratuity are as follows:

{a) Economic assumptions

Year ended Year ended

ZRERONY 31 march 2028 31 March 2024

Discount rate 6.99 722
Average salary escalation rate 5.00 5.00
Ages Withdrawal rate % Withdrawal rate %
Up to 30 Years 300 3.00
From 31 to 44 years 2.00 2.00
Above 44 years 1.00 1.00

The estunates of future salary increases, considered in actuanial valuation, take account of inflation, sentonty, promotion aud other relevant factors, such as
supply and demand in the employment market. The overall expected rate of retum on assets 15 determuned based on the market prices prevailing ou that date,
applicable to the pertod over which the obligation 1s to be settled.




C. Demographic assumptions

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 march 2025 31 March 2024
Retirement age 58 years 58 years
Mortality table 100% of IALM 100% of IALM
(2012 - 14) (2012 - 14)

D. A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March is as shown below:

4 Impact on defined
Assumptions i
p Sensitivity Level benefit obligation

Discount rate:

31 March 2025 Increase of 0.50% -1.00
Decrease of 0.50 % 1.10

31 March 2024 x Increase of 0.50% £0.86
Decrease of 0.50% 0.95

Future salary increases:

31 March 2025 Increase of 0.50% 1.12
Decrease of 0.50 % -1.02

31 March 2024 Increase of 0.50% 0.96
Decrease of 0.50% -0.88

The sensitivity anafyses above have been detenmined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonabie
changes in key assumptions occurrmg at the end of the reporting year

E. The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Within the next 12 months (next annunl reporting year) 0.28 016
Between 2 and 5 years 096 082
Beyond § years 1201 1068
Total expected payments 14.15 11.66

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting year is 17.90 years ( March 31, 2024 - 18 39)
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24 Related party transactions
(A) Names of related parties and related party relationship

Nature of relationship
(i) Holding Company:

(n) Key management personnel:

Name of related parties
DEE Development Engincers Ltd.

Mr. K L. Bansal (Director)
Mrs. Ashima Bansal (Whole Time Director)

Mrs. Shruti Agarwal (Director)

(B) The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered intowith related parties for the

relevant financial year:

Name of related party Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(i) With Holding Company - DEE Development Engineers Ltd.
Purchase of goods 121.71 785.02
Sale of product - 572
Sale of Property Plant & Equipment 29.47 -
Job Work Incomme - 12422
Interest expense 106.31 126.00
Electricity Consumption 38.21 6332
Loan Recerved 100.00 -
Loan Repayment 460.00 -
Rent Received 12.00 12.00
Corporate Guarantee Taken 2,328.00
(ii) With Key management personnel and their relatives:
Loan Received from Mr. K. L. Bansal - 285.00
Loan Paid back to Mr. K. L. Bansal 610.00 -
Rent Paid to Mr. K. L. Bansal 0.24 024
(C) Following are the balances outstanding as at year end:
Year ended Year ended
T Gy 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(i) With Holding Company - DEE Devel t Engineers Ltd.
Loan Taken 900.00 1,260.00
Interest payable 95.68 113.40
(i) With Key Management Personnel :
Mt KL Bansal 610.00
(D) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on tens equivalent to those that prevail in amm’s length transactions.
Qutstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free other than unsecured loan from parent company .

For the Year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has not recorded any impainment of receivables relating to amounts owed by
related parties.
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25 Commitments and Contingencies
Commitments

(a) Capital Commitments

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

Asat
31 March 2024

Estimated amount of contracts remaming to be executed on capital
account and not provided for (net of advances paid INR 0.00) (31 March
2024: INR 0.00)
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16 Fair values

Set out below, is a comparivon by class of the carryiug smounts and fair value of the Company”s financial mstruments, other than those with camying
amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying value Fair value
As at As at As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Particulars

(A} Financial assets

Non-current

Secunity depouts 86.51 67.84 86.51 6784

Current

Trade Receivables 631.84 507.88 631.84 507.88

Cash and bank balances 1.43 208.32 1.43 20832

Term deposits with maturity within 12 months 87.58 78.04 87.58 78.04

Interest Recervable 0.58 0.78 0.58 078

Security deposits 0.20 018 0.20 0.18

Total financial assets 80814 563,04 308,14 863.04
(B) Financial Habilities

Nou-Current

Borrowings 985,56 1853.51 985.56 1,853.51

Lease hiabditiy 151.88 16313 151.88 163.15

Current

Borrowings 481.24 1,151.77 481.24 1,151.77

Lease liability 4384 4515 43.84 45.15

Tiade payables 837.64 78267 857.64 782.67

Interest ac crued and not due on borrowings 97.70 123.37 9770 12337

Total financial Enbilities 2,617.86 4119.63 2,617.36 411962
Note:-

The monagement assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balauces, trade receivables, losn to employees, cutent pottion of security
deposits. other current assets, interest accrued on fixed deposits, trade payables and other current liabilities approximate their camying amounts
largely due to the short-term matrities of these mstnanents,

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the mstrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or hquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

a. Security deposits- The faxr value of security deposits and nter-corporate loans are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that
reflects the market rate of such mstruments as at the end of the reporting peniod. Management Lias assessed that the carying value of the mstruments
is significantly equal to fair value as on reporting date.

b. Term deposits- The fair value of term deposits 13 ¢qual to canrying value since they are carrying market mterest rates as per the banks.
¢. Long-tenn borrowings - The faw value of long-term borrowings 1s estunated by discounting future cash flows using rates curently available for

debt on simular terms, credit ask and remaining maturities. The camrying value and fair value of the borrowings has been considered the same since
the existing interest rate approxunates its fair value.

d. Others- For other I assets and Liabilities that are d at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.
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17 Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
(a) recognised and measured ar fair value and

(b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments
mito the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows undemeath the table.

This section explains the judgements and estimates made All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed i the financial

statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level wput that 1s significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level mput that is sigaificant to the fair value measurement is dircctly or indirectly
observable

Level 3 — Valuation techmniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

(1) - the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
(11) the fair valuc of mterest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable yield curves

(iii) the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

A Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2025:

Fair value measurement

Significant unobservable

Particulars Date of valuation Total 3

inputs
Financial assefs measured at amortised cost
Security deposits 31-Mar-25 86.51 86.51
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Non-current borrowings 31-Mar-25 985.56 985.56
Non-current lease liabilities 31-Mar-25 15188 151.88

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 duning the period.

B Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2024:
Fair value measurement

Significant unobservable

Particulars Date of valuation Total Sl
Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Security deposits 31 - Mar-24 6784 6784
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Non-current borrowings 31-Mar-24 185351 1,853.51
Non-cumrent lease liabilities 31-Mar-24 163.15 163.15

There have been no transfers between Level | and Level 2 during the year.
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28 Financial ritk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial abilities comprise loans and boirowings, trade and other payables. The mam purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the

Cm_np:ny'n operations, The Cowmpany’s principal financial assets include secunity deposits given, employee advances, trade and other receivables, cash and term deposits that
derive duectly from its operations,

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior mamgement oversees the management of these risks. The Board of Directors
Teviews and agrees pobicies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of fimre cash flows of a financial instrumrent will fuctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of
risk: mterest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, sach as equity price risk and commnodity risk. Financial mstruments affected by market risk include borrowings. The

Company is not exposed to currency risk and other pries ride
The sensitivity analysis i the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt. the ratio of floating 1o fixed interest rates of the debt and the proportion of financial
instruments i Breien currencies are all constant in place at 31 March 2025

The analysis exclude the nupact of movements in market variables on: the carrving values of gratwity and other post-reti obligations: p

The following assumption have been made in calculating the senutivity analysis:

- The semsitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial lisbilities
beld at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

Interest rate risk is the nsk that the faw value or fiture cash flows of a financial instrament will fuctuate because of <changes in market interest ratex. The Company’s exposure
to the nisk of changes i market mterest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-tenn debt obligations with floating witerest rates.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because Company bomaws funds at both foating mterest rates. These exposures are reviewed by appropriate levels of
management. The Company regularly monitors the market rate of mterest 1o watigate the risk exposwre. The Blow iug table demonsirates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowimngs affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company's profit bafore tax i afiected through
the unpact on floating rate borrowings, as follows

Particulars 31-Mar-25

Increase/  Effect on profit

Decreasein before tax

Loan fom banks +0.50% 381
Loan fiom banks -0.50% (3.81)
Credit risk
Credit risk is the 1isk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financil loss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activites mchuding deposits with bauks and financial institutions, Hreien exchange tr and other financial mstrments.

Trade recervables do not have any significant potential credit risk for the Company as the business of the Company is majorly cash based. Accordingly, any significant
ippainment analysis is not requied to be performed by the management at each reporting date except on individual baws ®r major cliewss. The Company is & power
generating company. The company is dealing with single customer having good credit worthiness, and no nupaimment loss has been recognized agamst these customers. In
menitormg customer credit risk, enstomer is reviewed according to their credit charactenstics. including whether they are an individual or a legal entity, their geographic
location, mdustry and existence of previous financial difficulties.

Liquidity risk
The Company™s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility twough the use of cash credits and bauk loans. Most of loaus bomowed by the
Company’s will not mature m less than one year at 31 March 2025 based on the camrying value of borrowmgs reflected m the financial statements. The Company assessed the

concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and conciuded it to be low, The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sowrces of finding and debt maturmg
within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders

As at 31 March 2025, the company had available INR 168.97 Lacs (as at 31 March 2024 Rs. 19 39 Lacs) of undrawn bomrewing facilities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’'s financial Liabilities based on contractual undiscounted pavinents

Ou demand Less than 3 3tol12 months  1to §years > § years Total
mopths

Year ended 31 March 2025

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 900.00 17358 9488 8335 - 125401
Short term borrowings A7 - - - 278
Trade payables . 85764 . - - 857.64
Other financial liabilities ) B T : S

i 102

;‘.I;:: :::nﬁ:;?::(:nzﬁdmg current maturities) 1,500 00 19511 585.59 549 46 - 2.830.16
Short tenn borrowiies - - - - - -
Trade pavables = 78267 = & 782.67
Other financial Labilibes - 12337 - - - 12337

150000 LI0LIS 56850 5946 ST
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29 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all other equity reserves
attributable to the shareholders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise
the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

The Company’s gearing ratio is as follows:

As at Asat

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Bomowmgs nchiding current matunties 1,466 .80 2,505.28
Less: cash and cash equivalents (1.43) (208 32)
Net debt (A) 1,465.37 2.296.96
-Equity (refer note 7 and 8) 1,028.18 478.74
Total capital (B) 1,028.18 478.74
Total capital and net debt (C) = (A) + (B) 2.493.55 2,775.70
Gearing ratio (A)/(C) (%) 58.77% 82.75%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches
m the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowings in the current period.




30 Other statutory information:
(1) The company do not have any Benami Property, where any pr ding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami Property.

(13) The company do not have any transactions witls companies struck off
(11) The company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be regstered with ROC beyond the siatutory period
(iv) The company have not traded or invested in C fypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The company have not advanced or loaned or mvested funds to any other person(s) or entity (ies), mcluding foreign entities (i diaries) with the und, ding that the
mtermediary shall:

(a) Dizectly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entities identified any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security. or the like to or on behalf of the Ultanate Beneficiasies.

(v) The campany have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) sith the wmderstanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the group shall:

(a) Directly or mdirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (Ultimate beneficiaries) or
() Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianies,

{vu) The Company have not any such tr ion which i not m the books of accounts that bas been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessment
under the income tax Act, 1961 (Such as. search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act. 1961

(viti) The company has not been declared as wilful defaulter,

(ix) The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companties (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

31 ACCOUNTING RATIOS

Reason for variance
;"n. Particulars Numerator Denominator March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 % Change nlmrc tham 254
Current Ratios (in tmmes) | Current assets Cugrent Habilities 086 079 10%NA
@)
Debt- Equity Ratio (in Total debt Shareholder equity 143 628 -77%|Due to Increase in Net
(o) |tumes) worth
Debt Service Coverage Eammg for Debt Service =Net Debt service = Interest & 093 092 3%|NA
ratio {in times) Profit before taxes + Non-cash Lease Payments +
operating expenses like Principal Repayments
© depreciation and other
anortizations +
Interest + other adjustments like
loss on sale of Fixed assets
Return on Equity ratio (%) |[Net profit after tax Average Shareholder’s 0353 103 329 48%|Due to Increase in Net
@ Equity profit & Net Worth
Inventory Turpover ratio  |Cost of goods sold Average inventory - - NAINA
® (i1 times)
Trade Receivable Tumover |[Revenue from operations Average trade recervable 889 7358 21%(NA
() |Rato (i times)
Trade Payable Tumoves  |NetPurchases Average trade payables 263 276 -5%[NA
® Ratio (i tunes)
Net Capital Turnover Ratio [Revenue from operations Average working capital (21.830) (8.18) 167%|Due to Increase in
(k) |(n times) 1evemue
Net Profit ratio (%) Net Profit after Tax Revenue from operations 10.85% 13.27% -18%|NA
®
Return on Capital Eaming before mterestand taxes | Capital Employed 41.23% 27.13%) 52% Du‘eo Decrease in
() |Employed (%) (EBIT) Capital Employed
Return on Investment (%) |Interest (Fmance Income) I N/A] N/A] NAINA
&)
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2 Leases
i) The Company’s leased assets primarily consists of lease for factory lands, computers and data processing equipment having lease term of 5-10
years.

The Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate as
on the date of ransition and has measured right of use asset at an amount equal to lease liability adjusted for previously recognised prepaid or
accrued lease payments. Further, lease ammangements where the Company is lessor, lease rentals are recognized on straight line basis over the
non-cancellable period

The Company’s obligations under its leases are secwred by the lessor’s title to the leased assets. Generally, the Company is restricted from
assignng and subleasing the leased assets .

The Company also has certamn leases of machinery with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of office equipment with low value. The
Company appliac the ‘chort_tarm leace” and ‘leace of low.value accete’ recogntion exemptions for these leases.

ii) Set-out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Factory Land Plant & Machinery Total
Asatl April 2023 160.28 30.42 120.70
Additions - -1 5 5 35.19
Deletions = - s
Depreciation Expenses (14.73) (24.79) {39.52)
Asat3l March 2024 145.55 40.82 18637
Additions - 3375 33.75
Deletions - (2.57) (25T
Depreciation Expenses (17.78) (32.00) (49.78)
Asat31 March 2025 127.77 40.00 167.77
\

iii) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under other financial liabilities) and the movements during the
year ended March 31, 2025:
Particulars Factory Land Plant & Machinery Total
Lease Liability as at 01 April 2023 158.78 48.21 206.99
Addinons - 35.19 35.19
Deletions/ Adjustment - . =
Interest 13.35 6.88 2023
Repayment (23.03) (31.08) (54.11)
Asat3] March 2024 142.10 59.20 208.30
Additions - 33.75 33.75
Deletions/ Adjustment - * s
Interest 1222 6.77 18.99
Disposal - (2.5 (2.57)
Repayment (24 35) (38.40) (62.75)
Asat31 March 2025 136.97 58.76 195.72
Current 1790 2594 4384
Non Current 99.53 52.35 151.88

iv) The maturity analysis of contractual undiscounted cash flow-: -
As at 31 March 2025

Less than 1 year 1to 5 years More than 5 year
Factory Land 2571 94.61 nn
Plant & Machinery 3387 58.42 m

59.58 153.03 nn
As at March 31, 2024

Less than 1 vear 1to5 years More than 5 vear
Factory Land 24.35 98.35 60.17
Plant & Machinery 3491 48.58

59.26 146.93 60.17




(v) The effective mterest rate for the lease Labilities 15 10% with matunty between 2022-2029
(vi) The following are the amounts recogmised mn the statement of profit and loss :

Particulars Factory Land Plant & Machinery 31-Mar-25
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 17.78 32.00 49.78
Interest expense on lease liabilities 12.22 6.77 18.99

Expense relating to short-tem leases
(Profit)Loss on derecognition of right of use asset

(vi1) The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 62,75.349 for the Year ended March 31, 2025.
(viti) The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to

provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the C *s busi needs. Mana exercises sigmficant

P

judgement i determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised
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